'@

PENSACOLA STATE COLLEGE POLICE DEPARTMENT
1000 COLLEGE BOULEVARD

SUPPLEMENT NUMBEE

PENSACOLA, FL 32504
N (850) 4842500 OFFENSE RE PORT
Agency Case Number . Report Date / Time Offense Description
PSC210FF000016 03/27/2021 09:45 AM 313 DISTURBANCE
CAD Incident Number External Case Reference Number Range of Occurrence Date/Time
PSC21CAD001403 03/27/2021 09:30 AM to 03/27/2021 12:00 AM
LOCATION OF OCCURRENCE
County Address Latitude Longitude
ESCAMBIA 1000 COLLEGE BLVD B03, PENSACOLA, FL 32504 30.48014 -87.20337
Location Category Location Type Location Description Location Status Lighting Condition
Non-residence School B3/Lot N Inhabited Night
. [Clear []Cloudy [JFog [JRain [JSnow [JHail [JOther [JUnknown
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix |Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height [Weight Hair Eyes
DALMA ABDULLAHI ALI L 08/16/1994 26 | B | M | l 0 | | J
Master Name Index Number l Place of Birth | Nation Driver's License or Other 1D State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000035 A400161942960 FL
Address City County State [ Zip Code Phone
228 DIXIEDR 212 ITALLAHASSEE | FL [32504 | (416)275-8229
Residence Status | Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state [JArrested [Jwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix |Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height [Weight Hair E
MANDELA BALEDROKADROKA | | T [P [V | e ] B
Masséer Narﬁe Index Number I Place of Birth I ation Driver's License or Other ID State Class or Type
PSC21MNI1000052
Address City [County ISlate | Zip Code | Phone
Residence Status | Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | [JArrested | [Owanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
F'vilrﬁlr\-llaaﬁ Middle Name E;IL’\‘I%?'FE Suffix [Date of Birth Age l Race Sﬁlx Height IWeéght | Hair | Eyes
ggs(t:ezr1N“zn\Ieolndex Number I Place of Birth I Nation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
00051
Address City |Coumy | State |Zip Code | Phone
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | [JArrested | [Jwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
Etls'x\ﬁme Middle Name ba(s:;lr:lla_ri'ﬁs Suffix IDate of Birth Age | Race SNEIX Height |We(i)ght | Hair | Eyes
Master Name Iggex Number I Place of Birth | Nation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI1000057
Address City |County ISlate [Zip Code | Phone
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | | [JArrested | [Jwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
_Frilri;ll\(l)a?ﬁY Middle Name Lca(s)!%ame Suffix |Date of Birth Age I Race | S'ﬁx Height IWe(iJght | Hair | Eyes
Masler1NMar£?&Sg%x zlurnber l Place of Birth l Nation Driver's License or Other 1D State  Class or Type
PSC2 5
Address City ICounly | State | Zip Code | Phone
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | | [CJArrested l [Jwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix |Date of Birth Age Race Sex [ Height [Weight Hair Eyes
NOAH ¢RO | 3is0M%er 55 | W oge [T | | =
Master Name Index Number I Place of Birth | ation Driver's License or Other ID ~ State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000037 4540016197 IN
Address City County State | Zip Code Phone
228 DIXIE DR lTALLAHASSEE LAFAYETTE | FL 32304 (812)766-0163
[Residence Status I Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state [JArrested [Jwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
ﬂrél&lﬁme Middle Name I.Daztﬁlnge Suffix |Date of Birth Age ] Race | Sﬁlx Height | We(i)ght I Hair | Eyes
Master Namie lgcé%x glumber | Place of Birth I Nation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI00005
Address City ICoumy | State |Zip Code | Phone
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state l | [JArrested | [wanted
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Offense Report



Agency Case Number Report Date / Time Offense Description

PSC210FF000016 03/27/2021 09:45 AM 313 DISTURBANCE

CAD Incident Number External Case Reference Number Range of Occurrence Date/Time

PSC21CAD001403 03/%7/2021 09:30 AM to 03/27/2021 12:00 AM

PERSON: OTHER PERSON

First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age [ Race Sex | Height |Weight Hair Eves
SONYA LE EVANS | Tisnses 5 |8 ¥ [™ "™ [8Ro | BRo
Master Name Index Number ] Place of Birth | Nation Driver's License or Other 1D State  Class or Type

PJC08MNI000415 E1527926593290

Address l City ICounty State [ Zip Code Phone

8100 W HWY 98 PENSACOLA FL [32506 (850)529-5311
Residence Status | Vehicle on Report Associated with Person

Within state [JArested [wanted

Occupation Employer Master Business Index Number
COUNSELOR PENSACOLA JUNIOR COLLEGE

Address | City State [Zip Code Phone

1000 COLLEGE BLVD PENSACOLA FL |32504 l (850)529-5311 |

PERSON: OTHER PERSON

First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height |Weight Hair Eyes
INMHOTE GEORGE Rl b il Tl Bl B
aster Name Index Number | Place of Birth I ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000058
Address City County IState lZip Code | Phone
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associaled with Person
Within state l [CJArrested | [Jwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height |Weight Hair Eyes
CHANTRY JACAN HOLDMAN | oiorses B |W [ W | 1" | E
Master Name Index Number[ Place of Birth I Nation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000043 H435-101-85-3301 FL
Address City [Counly | State | Zip Code Phone
(850)876-0213
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | [CJArrested [Jwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height [Weight Hair Eyes
LEAH HUTCHINS | %8 |} "™ | | =
Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type

Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth

| ation

Offense Report

PSC21MNI000059

Address City |County | State | Zip Code ' Phone

Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person

Within state I [CJArrested [ [Jwanted

PERSON: OTHER PERSON

First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix  [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height |Weight Hair Eves
STACY MCKENZIE | B | F | | 0 |BLK | BRO
Master Name Index Number I Place of Birth l Nation Driver's License or Other 1D State  Class or Type

PSC21MNI000062

Address City ]Counly | State |Zip Code Phone

(850)602-2146
esidence Status I Vehicle on Report Associated with Person l

Within state [JArrested [Jwanted

PERSON: OTHER PERSON

Eirst Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height |Weight Hair Eyes
PETE PENA | Obiteiisss o5 [N (W[ e
Master Name Index Number I Place of Birth | ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type

PJC14MNI000117

Address | City County State | Zip Code Phone

1000 COLLEGE BLVD B3 PENSACOLA ESCAMBIA FL [32504 850-484-1000
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person

Within state [CJArrested I [Jwanted

PERSON: OTHER PERSON

First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height |Weight Hair Eyes
TYLER POINDEXTER | L5 [ ™ | &
Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth I Nation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000056

Address City |Coumy | State IZip Code | Phone

Residence Status Venhicle on Report Associated with Person

Within state ’ I [Arrested | [Owanted

PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age Race Sex [ Height [Weight Hair Eyes
ZACHARY AUSTIN SETTEMBRE | WisAsee W [ W [T [ | =
Master Name Index Number I Place of Birth l ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI1000036 S06511155 KY
Address | City County State [ Zip Code Phone
3117 PARKLAWN ST TALLAHASSEE LEON FL [32304 (502)387-6227
Residence Status lVehicle on Report Associated with Person

Within state [CJArrested [wanted
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Offense Report

Agency Case Number Report Date / Time Offense Description
PSC210FF000016 03/27/2021 09:45 AM 313 DISTURBANCE
CAD Incident Number External Case Reference Number Range of Occurrence Date/Time
PSC21CAD001403 03/%7/2021 09:30 AM to 03/27/2021 12:00 AM
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix |Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height |[Weight Hair Eye
BIJON MICHAEL SIDHU'SINGH ' oBio2/s000 55 | | W [ [ [8Ro | P
Master Name Index Number l Place of Birth | ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000032 SIDHUBMO00SNB WA
Address City County State | Zip Code Phone
1000 COLLEGE BLVD PENSACOLA ESCAMBIA FL [32504 (425)749-8220
'Residence Status | Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state [[JArrested [wanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height |Weight Hair E:
CHEICKNA IAMADBY SISSOKO | WibAsee B | TE T [V ] j ¥
Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth | Nation Driver's License or Other 1D State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000044
Address | City |County State | Zip Code Phone
2143 PINEVIEW CIR PENSACOLA FL 32526 (850)497-4061
Residence Status I Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | [lArrested [Jwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height [Weight Hair E
BREON THOMPSON | ol | R
Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth | Nation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000055
Address City 1County | State lZip Code | Phone
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | | [JArrested | [Qwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix |Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height |[Weight Ha E:
BRETT J THOMPSON | 137505000 % | L e | Rer T B
Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth | ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI1000038
Address City |County ]State [ Zip Code l Phone
esidence Status | Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | [JArrested | [Jwanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix  [Date of Birth Age Race Sex [ Height |Weight Hair Eyes
BENJAMIN TURNER | a0 o5 | "B | W ¢ | | =
Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth I Nation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000048 939442779 AR
Address | City |Coumy State [ Zip Code Phone
512 WOODLAND CIR TRUMANN AR |72472 (870)340-1708
Residence Status | Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state [[JArrested [Owanted
PERSON: OTHER PERSON
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix  [Date of Birth Age Race Sex [ Height [Weight Hair E
JOSHU IREISNARN WILLIAMS Aiosso0 A (B [ W[ [ [P
Master Name Index Number I Place of Birth I ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI1000045 W452431004090 FL
Address ] City County State | Zip Code Phone
1919 MISTRAL LN W FORT WALTON FL [32547
esidence Status | Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state [JArrested | [Jwanted
PERSON: SUSPECT
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix |Date of Birth Age Race Sex [ Height [Weight Hair Eye
JADA CRENSHAW PR L ™ [ | -
Master Name Index Number I Place of Birth | ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000063
Address City ,County | State |Zip Code I Phone
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state I | [CJArrested | [Jwanted
PERSON: SUSPECT
Eirst Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix |Date of Birth Age | Race Sex |Height [Weight Hair Eyes
FLOYD MACKSBN DAVIS | im0 B |FE [ W[ [V | =
Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth l ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI1000033 060631182 GA
Address iCity County State | Zip Code Phone
228 DIXIE DR TALLAHASSEE FL [32504 (678)640-5066
Residence Status l Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | [CJArrested [Jwanted
PERSON: SUSPECT
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix |Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height [Weight Hair Eyes
TERRY M DURHAM | Wisarises B W [ W™ [V ] | &
aster Name Index Number I Place of Birth | ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
| PSC21MN1000041
Address City County State | Zip Code Phone
1007 LYNNE TERR CINCINNATI OH ]45215
Residence Status Venhicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | | [[JArrested l [wanted
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Agency Case Number

Offense Description

Report Date / Time
313 DISTURBANCE

Within state

PSC210FF000016 03/27/2021 09:45 AM
CAD Incident Number External Case Reference Number e of Occurrence Date/Time
PSC21CAD001403 03/%7/2021 09:30 AM to 03/27/2021 12:00 AM
PERSON: SUSPECT
Rﬁll\ll_\’ame Middle Name EﬁSﬂ%ADEH Suffix |Date of Birth Age | Race Slﬁx Height | We(i)ght I Hair l Eyes
Mgsétazl"‘anme Index Number | Place of Birth l ation Driver's License or Other ID State Class or Type
P 1000061
Address City |Counly | State | Zip Code | Phone
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | | [CJArrested | [Jwanted
PERSON: SUSPECT
BE)?%E?? Middle Name Iﬁ%PN(aEmﬁZ'E Suffix %gluleoo{}azirbho1 /‘}Z%e | Race | Sex | Height lWebght l Hair I Eyes
pgscl:ezr1Nﬁmzla0ISg%3r;umber I Place of Birth | ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
Address City County State | Zip Code Phone
252 CHESTNUT ST PENSACOLA ESCAMBIA FL | 32506
'Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state [JArrested [[Jwanted
PERSON: SUSPECT
jiBtSNﬁme Middle Name ﬁzﬁté\l?én)e Suffix [Date of Birth Age ] Race Sﬁlx Height | We(i)ght I Hair | Eyes
gassée2|'1Nn.7[n? IngexGNumber l Place of Birth | ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
000060
[ Address City County | State | Zip Code | Phone
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state I | [CJArrested | [wanted
PERSON: SUSPECT
i\ir[s)tRNlaAnﬁ %idd!e Name Ws}\l'\ieikné) Suffix |%a21710§/82ir6h00 % | Rzg:e Sﬁlx Height |We69ht | Hair | Eyes
Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth | Nation | Driver's License or Other ID State Class or Type
PSC21MNI1000040
Address | City |County State [ Zip Code Phone
1156 HAWTHORN DR i PENSACOLA FL [32507 (850)741-8385
Residence Slatus I Vehicle on Report Associated with Person [Jarestes [Wanted

Offense Report

PERSON: SUSPECT
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix  |Date of Birth Pége Race Sex |Height [Weight Hair Eyes
DEANGELO DUJVAN WARE 03/10/2000 1 M 0g
Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth | ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000034 3478967430 IN
Address City County State | Zip Code Phone
228 DIXIE DR TALLAHASSEE FL [32504 (812)204-2654
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | | [JArrested [Jwanted
PERSON: WITNESS A
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height [Weight Hair Eyes
LARRY NEAL DARSEY ] 05736850 7T | | 5 "™ | | =
aster Name Index Number | Place of Birth | ation ] Driver's License or Other ID State Class or Type
PSC21MNI000046 055434009
Address City County [Slale Zip Code I Phone
229)977-0964
Residence Status l Vehicle on Report Associated with Person | ( )
Within state [JArrested [Owanted
PERSON: WITNESS A
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix  [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height [Weight Hair Eyes
LUKE JOSEPH KARABA 0
Master Name Index Number l Place of Birth | ation ] Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000047 UE356228 OH
Address City County State | Zip Code Phone
2975 MONARCH DR COLUMBUS OH [43235 (740)275-6768
esidence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | | [CJArrested [Jwanted
PERSON: WITNESS A
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix  [Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height [Weight Hair
KAPOO SAGAR 05/12/1994 76 | W |56y e8| &k | BRo
‘Master Name Index Number I Place of Birth ] ation Driver's License or Other ID State Class or Type
PSC21MN1000049 K160780941720 FL
Address l City County State | Zip Code Phone
1000 COLLEGE BLVD. DORMS PENSACOLA ESCAMBIA FL 32504 (850)484-1096
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | | [JArrested [Jwanted
PERSON: WITNESS A
First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix [Date of Birth /ﬁe}a Race Sex | Height [Weight Hair Eyes
JOSHUA KRISHAWN WILLIAMS 11/09/2000 B M Og
Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth I ation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type
PSC21MNI000045 W452431004090 FL
Address City County Slale le Code Phone
1919 MISTRAL LN W FORT WALTON
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person
Within state | [:]Arresled | [Jwanted
Page 4 of 14



Agency Case Number Report Date / Time Offense Description

PSC210FF000016 03/27/2021 09:45 AM 313 DISTURBANCE

CAD Incident Number External Case Reference Number Range of Occurrence Date/Time

PSC21CAD001403 03/%7/2021 09:30 AM to 03/27/2021 12:00 AM

PERSON: WITNESS B

First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix  [Date of Birth Ag7e Race Sex | Height |Weight Hair Eyes
JESUS DELMORA RIVERA 01/11/1984 3 H M 0g

Master Name Index Number | Place of Birth | Nation Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type

PSC21MN1000042 R160-424-84-011-1 FL

Address City |Counly ISlate IZip Code Phone

8504850593

Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person

Within state | | [CJArrested | [Qwanted
PERSON: WITNESS C

First Name Middle Name Last Name Suffix |Date of Birth Age Race Sex | Height |Weight Hair Eyes

GLAS ’L ROGERS | 021101963 58 | W | M l | 0 | | d

Master Name Index Number I Place of Birth | ation | Driver's License or Other ID State  Class or Type

PJC11MNI1000330

Address rCily |Counly JSlate Zip Code Phone

1000 COLLEGE BLVD PENSACOLA FL 32504 (850)484-1317
Residence Status Vehicle on Report Associated with Person

Within state | | [CJArrested | [wanted
BUSINESS: OTHER

Business Name Contact (Person) Phone Number

PENSACOLA POLICE DEPARTMENT CHIEF LYTER

Address I City County State Zip Code

711 N HAYNE PENSACOLA ESCAMBIA FL 3205
BUSINESS: OTHER

Business Name Contact (Person) |Phone Number
TALLAHASSEE COMMUNITY COLLEGE (850)201-6200

Address | City County State Zip Code

444 APPLEYARD DR TALLAHASSEE LEON FL 32304
BUSINESS: OTHER

Business Name Contact (Person) Phone Number

PENSACOLA STATE COLLEGE 850-484-2500

Address l City County State Zip Code
1000 COLLEGE BLVD PENSACOLA ESCAMBIA FL 32504
CHARGES

Counts | Charge Number Charge

b5 |878%61 |Bi&Ro conpuct

FIRETBEGREE | MFSBEREANOR | BRAGETFAE “* | [ Hate crime | (3 Domestic iotence
Charge Description

AFFRAY

INITIAL NARRATIVE: 03/29/2021 09:03 AM

Reporting Officer Approving Supervisor
Call Number |Officer Name Permanent ID Number Approved Supervisor Name Permanent 1D Number
907 [GARY, AMANDA PJC17PER000006 | STEELE, RICHARD PJC12PER000016

On 3/27/2021, at approximately 2140 hours, PSC Officer Mendez #9308 and | were working an overtime detail
(Basketball game) at Pensacola State College, located at 1000 College Blvd., Pensacola Fl, 32504 (Building 3) in

Escambia County.

It should also be noted that during the men's game, a disturbance between a TCC athlete, identified as Shawn
Walker #22 and PSC athlete, identified as Brent Thompson #0 , occurred on the court. Thompson was elbowed in
the face by Walker causing a verbal altercation that was separated by players and referees prior to any more
physical attacks. During this game, there was heightened emotions from all athletes, coaches, and the crowds. Due
to the atmosphere of the game,, Officer Mendez and | remained inside the gym during the entire game. Officer
Mendez and | took separate corners incase a fight occurred.

At the time of this incident, Officer Mendez and | had just completed our routine to secure all entrances and exits to
Building 3 and escort non-athletes out of the gym. The men's basketball game between PSC and Tallahassee
Community College had just ended. It should be noted that the men's basketball games between TCC and PSC had
always been an issue with heightened emotions, but never to this extent. This basketball game was the last game of
the season for PSC, and was titled "Sophomore Night", therefore a few of the PSC basketball athletes were taking
photographs with their families. Also, it was not uncommon for PSC athletes to remain in the gym after the games
with their families and for follow up interviews with media. It also appeared that the parking lot had emptied out

from vehicles and spectators.

Officer Mendez and | began walking outside of Building 3. Once | opened the front entrance to Building 3, Officer
Mendez and | were in the middle of a physical altercation between several individuals from both TCC and PSC, as
well as several unidentified individuals. Officer Mendez and | became separated in the crowds as we both attempted

Offense Report Page 5 of 14



Agency Case Number Report Date / Time Offense Description

PSC210FF000016 03/27/2021 09:45 AM 313 DISTURBANCE

CAD Incident Number External Case Reference Number Range of Occurrence Date/Time

PSC21CAD001403 03/%7/2021 09:30 AM to 03/27/2021 12:00 AM

to dissolve the fight. The fight grew into a large crowd of 50 or more individuals, and several other fights began to
break out and the crowd was uncontrollable. Vehicles began driving up with more individuals that were joining in
on the fights. Verbal commands were not working, | was struck several times while attempting to pull individuals
apart at which time | changed my department issued radio from PSC's channel to Pensacola Police Department's
channel and requested immediate assistance. | also deployed my department issued O.C spray at which time
individuals began running away, getting inside vehicles and leaving the immediate area. Ultimately everyone began
separating as they felt the effects of the O.C Spray. It took several attempts of spraying O.C spray to fully
de-escalate the fight. PPD responded to assist on separating all the fights that had broken out.

Once the situation had diffused, PPD advised to their dispatch that EMS was needed for individuals who were O.C
sprayed and injured. | also notified Chief of Police for PSC of the situation. While assisting individuals that needed
medical attention, PSC player, Terry Durham, attempted to reinitiate the fight as most of the TCC players were
helping their players that were O.C sprayed. At this time, it did not appear that TCC players were fighting anymore.
Coaches and other individuals helped separate the groups. TCC players went on the bus, and PSC players and their
families were instructed to go inside the gym. Still, vehicles and other unidentified members were pulling up in
vehicles or walking up attempting to fight. PPD helped escort several people away from the area.

Durham was still screaming verbal threats to TCC, hitting PSC property, and making a large scene. Durham was told
several times by me and other individuals to go inside the gym in which Durham became more irate shoving myself
and others out of the way. Individuals carried Durham inside Building 3. Durham was being non-complainant and
kept escalating the situation. Durham is known for his temper on the team.

EMS units arrived on scene and treated all parties that needed assistance. PSC Chief Goley arrived on scene and
was briefed of the incident. PSC President Dr. Ed Meadows arrived on scene and was briefed on the incident as
well. Both Coaches, TCC coach and PSC Coach Pete Pena wished to pursue criminal charges. Officer Mendez and |
split up and interviewed individuals. Officer Mendez took all other parties statements and information from TCC's
side and | took independent statements from witnesses. It should be noted that PSC athletes did not want to
provide statements and were asked several times.

EMS ended up transporting PSC athlete, Dexter McKenzie, to Sacred Heart for a head injury. McKenzie appeared to
be disoriented on scene, and could not answer simple questions as to his birth date. EMS Run # 19.

Also, during the incident several bags that belonged to PSC athletes were believed to be missing. Witnesses told
Coach Pena of the situation who reported the information to me. One bag was retrieved from an unknown location.
No one came forward and reported missing items to police. TCC coach was aware of the situation and advised that
no PSC property was located on the bus.

Also, after all withess statements were taken (see other supplements), Officer Mendez and | went to the PSC dorms
where we attempted to take witness statements from the PSC athletes again. Durham became argumentative and
irate again with officers. All other athletes, and unidentified parties that were at the dorms were quiet and just stood
around. Durham continued to state "where were yall when | got jumped"” and "yall didn't do anything to help".
Durham punched the trash can and the lid flung off the can. Durham appeared to be the leader of the group because
since Duhram was not going to provide any statement, none of the other players were going to either. Durham was
stating "we handle it in the streets". At this point, it was pointless to argue or attempt to obtain statements. Coach
Sagar stated that Durham was "hot headed" and needed to cool down. Officer Mendez and | then left the dorms to
obtain a statement from McKenzie at Sacred Heart and get a status update on his injuries. (See other supplements
for McKenzie's statement)

The entire incident was not captured on my department issued body camera.

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 03/29/2021 09:10 AM

Reporting Officer Approving Supervisor
Call Number [Officer Name Permanent ID Number Approved Supervisor Name Permanent 1D Number

908 MENDEZ, STEPHANIE PSC18PER000008 STEELE, RICHARD PJC12PER000016

On Saturday, 3/27/2021 at approximately 2140 hours, Officer Gary #907 and myself were working an off duty detail at
Pensacola State College, Building 3, located at 1000 College Blvd., Pensacola FL, 32504 in Escambia County.
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Agency Case Number Report Date / Time Offense Description

PSC210FF000016 03/27/2021 09:45 AM 313 DISTURBANCE

CAD Incident Number External Case Reference Number Range of Occurrence Date/Time

PSC21CAD001403 03/%7/2021 09:30 AM to 03/27/2021 12:00 AM

Officer Gary and | were conducting our routine lock up of the building, after the Pensacola State College Boys
Basketball game had ended. A few players from PSC were finishing up photographs with family and friends, and it
appeared that the parking lot was stating to empty. Officer Gary and | were walking outside to lock up the main door
when we saw that there was a group of Basketball players from Pensacola State College (PSC) and other
unidentified individuals, along with a group of Basketball players from Tallahassee Community College (TCC) in a
physical altercation. One of the coaches from TCC exited building and assisted Officer Gary, | to break up the
physical altercation in the entryway of the building. The group then broke up in to multiple different altercations,
which caused Officer Gary and | to get separated. One group ended up on the side of Building 20, the other group
ended up in the parking lot of Building 3.

An incident which caught my immediate attention was when | saw Adrian Walker and Terry Durham being chased by
three individuals, who | identified as TCC players towards building 20. | took off after the group, losing sight of
Durham but saw Walker and the three TCC players beginning to fight. | deployed my department issued baton while
yelling verbal commands for them to get back and to stop. | ended up in between Walker and the three TCC players,
with my back was to the TCC players holding them back from attacking Walker and swinging my baton to keep
Walker from lunging at the TCC players. At this time, | was stuck in the back of the head and back by the TCC
players, as they were actively attempting to attack Walker. | continued to yell verbal commands, where at that time
Walker took off running back to building 3. The three TCC players complied with verbal commands to stop after
Walker ran off and began to walk back to retrieve their bags in front of building 3. At that time, | observed Multiple
vehicles were pulling up to the side of building 3. | began walking back up to tell the individuals who had gotten out
of their vehicles that they had to vacate the premises, when | saw a TCC player lunge at a PSC player, and that is
when the Head Coach of TCC grabbed a hold of his TCC player leading him away to the parking lot attempting to
get all of the players on the bus.

| observed a TCC Player trying to hit the phone down of one of the bystanders who was filming the fights in front of
building 3, | intervened and was giving the TCC Athletes verbal commands to separate and get on the bus. At that
time, | saw an unknown PSC Player get attacked and brought to the ground and the TCC Players jumped on top,
while a few PSC players were trying to get them off along with Officer Gary, coaches and staff. At that point Officer
Gary Pepper Sprayed the group fighting which caused the individuals to disperse. PPD then arrived on scene to
assist and radio to their dispatch for EMS for those pepper sprayed and injured to get medical attention if needed.

PPD, Officer Gary and | got all the TCC players to get on to their bus. Durham was still threatening and yelling at
TCC trying to initiate more fights. Officer Gary and | told all the PSC athletes to get into the building and stay there
unless they needed medical attention.

Officer Gary and | then split up to interview witnesses and to gather statements. | took the statements from TCC and
Officer Gary took statements from PSC witnesses. (see supplements)

Officer Gary and | went to the dorms after the fact to attempt to gather statements from the PSC players. When we
attempted to talk to the boys, Terry Durham became very hostile asking us " where were you when | was getting
jumped" and that "we did not do anything", he then hit the trash can and the lid went flying. Adrian and the others
also denied writing statements.

Officer Gary and | then when to Sacred Heart Hospital to go retrieve a statement and check on the condition of
Dexter McKenzie, which will be in supplement provided by Officer Gary.

The entire incident was not captured on my department issued body camera.

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 03/29/2021 11:04 AM

Reporting Officer Approving Supervisor
Call Number  [Officer Name Permanent 1D Number Approved Supervisor Name Permanent 1D Number
907 GARY, AMANDA PJC17PER000006 %] STEELE, RICHARD PJC12PER000016

Witness 1, identified as Jesus Rivera (FL DL # R-160-424-84-011-1) provided the following sworn verbal statements:
Rivera stated that he was not present during the initial altercation but saw all parties fighting. Rivera stated that
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someone from the bus (identified as TCC athletes: Josh Rubio, Floyd Davis and El Ellis) tried to take his phone as
Floyd Davis kept stating "don't film me". Rivera has no further information.

Rivera provided a video of the partial incident and was uploaded into Case Mangement as video #3.

Witness 2, identified as Luke Karaba Ohio DL # UE356228, provided the following sworn verbal statement that he
believed "DJ", identified as PSC athlete Dexter McKenzie, was in a verbal argument with 4 unidentified players from
TCC and then about "15 players walked up on him" and the fight started to break out. Unknown who threw the first
hit or what the argument was about. Karaba also had a video clip from the incident and it was uploaded into Case
Management as video #2.

Witness 3, identified as Douglas "Doug"” Rogers (PSC Faculty member), stated that he did not witness the initial
altercation but helped assist with de-escalating the fights once he saw Officer Mendez and myself in the middle of
the altercation. Both parties were actively fighting.

Witness 4, identified as Chantry Holdman (FL DL # H435-101-85-3301), stated that he did not really witness anything
except for when the TCC players attempted to take Rivera's phone and multiple people fighting. Holdman also had
a video clip from the incident and was uploaded into Case Management, labeled # 1.

Witness 5, identified as Sonya Evans (FL DL # E152-792-65-9290), provided the following sworn written statements:
Evans was speaking with Durham when pizza delivery guy pulled up. Evans walked off. Durham got into a verbal
altercation with TCC players (unidentified). The TCC's entire team ran up on Durham and McKenzie and TCC started
to beat them up and kick them in the head. Evans ran toward the fight to help pull people off and help get everyone
in the gym. Evans then heard that her niece, Jada Crenshaw, got pepper sprayed. Evans went to assist Crenshaw
get inside the gym. Evans then came back outside to see TCC still trying to fight PSC athletes.

Witness 6, PSC Coach Kapor Sagar stated that when he came outside "DJ" was in a headlock, with several people
crowding around him as he was being punched and kicked. Coach Sagar identified one of the TCC players as Rubio
#15 who was attaching "DJ".

Witness 7, Bus Driver for TCC Larry Darsey (GA DL#055434009), provided a verbal statement that he witnessed an
unidentified person in white shirt and grey sweatpants reach inside their vehicle and grab a gun but the person
could not be identified. Darsey could not describe the firearm and also stated that he believed it to be a gun based
on the motions the individual made. Darsey stated the person was never seen again nor could he point the person
out.

It should be noted that the three individuals that were believed to have a firearms were friend's of McKenzie's
girifriend, "Bri", but they had no firearms on them as they pulled their shirts up and were showing law enforcement
that no firearms were present. The individuals had left prior to statements being taken. The one that possibly had
the firearms in the white shirt and red sweat pants was identified as a person named "Luke". No other information
could be found on the individuals.

PSC coaches were able to obtain witness statements from PSC athletes after the fact on 3/28/2021 and were later
emailed to Officer Mendez and 1.

Below are the following statements from the PSC athletes:

Witness 8, PSC athlete Benjamin "Ben" Turner (AR DL# 839442779) provided the following written statements:
Turner was walking to his vehicle when he witnessed about 5 TCC athletes fighting PSC athlete Durham, PSC
athlete Brent Thompson, and PSC athlete McKenzie. Turner helped assist police and faculty members by pulling
people off. Then everyone was pepper sprayed. PSC athletes then got in the back of Turner's truck and left the
scene. Turner identified TCC athiete, Deangelo Ware as one of the players fighting Durham which caused Durham to
fall from his crutches. Other players that were identified as actively fighting from TCC's side were Etan Collins,
Breon Thompson, Tyler Poindexter, and Amir Gholizadeh.

Officer Mendez and | also went to Sacred Heart to get McKenzie's statements on 3/28/2021 at approximately 0100
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hours. McKenzie provided the following statements: McKenzie stated that he was walking to his vehicle that was
parked in Lot N when he witnessed a TCC athlete (unidentified) was "trying to get at Terry (Durham)" and he saw
people chasing other people down the street. McKenzie stated that those statements were all that he could
remember. McKenzie stated that he could not remember loosing consciousness but witnesses, such as Evans,
stated otherwise. Evans stated that McKenzie lost consciousness. McKenzie stated that his friends carried him
inside Building 3.

McKenzie's injuries were documented and uploaded into Case Management. McKenzie's mom, Stacy McKenzie,
advised she would send me an email of McKenzie's medical reports for the report. McKenzie has a follow up
doctor's appointments with a neurologist and was diagnosed as having a mild concussion. McKenzie was released
from the hospital on 3/28/2021. Stacy McKenzie was not present for this incident.

Coach Sagar provided photographs of Walker's injuries on 3/29/2021 and were uploaded into Case Management. It
should be noted that Walker did not want to provide a statement.

Thompson and Durham also refused to provide statements as well.

On 3/29/2021, Coach Sagar was asked to retrieve information from the Domino’s employee, identified as Cameron
Feathers, who was present during the beginning of the altercation. Coach Sagar had Feathers complete a witness
statement as the coaches were helping retrieve statements from the incident. The statement was uploaded into
Case Management. The statement provided names of both TCC player, Ware, and PSC player, Durham. Being that
names were listed in his statement, | contacted Feathers via cell phone to get a verbal statement as to how the
names were identified. Feathers provided the following verbal statements: Feathers was not sure where to go on
campus so he pulled to the front door of PSC's Building 3. Durham approached Feathers and asked if the pizza was
for PSC. Feathers stated the pizza was not and stated that Ware was there on behalf of TCC to retrieve the pizza.
Durham began a verbal argument with Ware as he "slicked off at the mouth" and everyone began arguing. Feathers
then stated that someone in a "red hoodie” swung first. Feathers believed it was a person from TCC but was not
sure. Feathers stated that the coach from TCC interviewed him on scene and identified the names to him which was
how he knew the names. The TCC coach, unidentified, then told Feathers to leave in which he did. Feathers kinew a
second fight broke out but was not sure who initiated that fight. Feathers stated that all he wanted to do was leave.

it should be noted that the individual seen on the video footages of a person in a red hoodie was identified as
McKenzie. Another individual that was in a red hoodie was not identified but was seen as a person walking away
and standing at the front doors, not actively participating. Feathers still has not been told the name of the individual
who was in the red hoodie, Feathers just knew that Durham did not swing first so he believed that person in the
"red hoodie" was Ware based on the names the coach provided to him (which is what his statements read).

On 3/31/2021, | made contact with McKenzie and Evans in attempts to identified Crenshaw. Crenshaw was not
identified through police databases. McKenzie and Evans advised they would have Crenshaw contact PSC Police
for further information regarding this incident.

The request for Pensacola Police Department's body camera footage was sent out on 3/31/2021.

It should also be noted that the building cameras to Building 3 were offline during this incident and no footage
captured the incident per PSC dispatch.

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 03/29/2021 11:39 AM

Reporting Officer Approving Supervisor
Call Number [Officer Name Permanent ID Number Approved Supervisor Name Permanent 1D Number
908 MENDEZ, STEPHANIE JPSC18PER000008 %] STEELE, RICHARD ]PJC12PER000016

| collected multiple witness statements from the TCC athletes and coaches and one PSC athlete as well as received
some from the PSC athletes from Coach Kapoor after the fact.

The first individual | spoke with was the head coach of TCC Zachary Austin Settembre, who provided me with a
sworn written statement. In his statement he stated, Tallahassee CC men's basketball team was jumped outside the
Hartsell Arena. Settembre advised that it all began when the Dominos Pizza delivery driver asked if they were
Tallahassee, which they stated they were. Settembre stated that Terry Durham told them that "They aren't getting
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shit, bitch. Fuck you N___". Settembre advised that after Terry Durham said that, one of his players responded and

asked "who are you talking to" where then Durham responded with "I'm talking to you bitch". Settembre stated that
then Durham's team mate Dexter McKenzie threw a punch at Floyd Davis (TCC Player). Settembre said that the
female that Dexter was with began throwing punches into the crowd. Settembre advised that more people
associated with PSC then joined in saying racial slurs and pushing then fighting broke out.

When | was handing out the witness statements Settembre the head coach of TCC was attempting to speak with
DeAngelo Ware before he began writing his statement, which should be document on my department issued body
camera. The other Delmar Ali who also provided a statement after was talking with Head coach before his
statement.

The second individual | spoke with was DeAngelo Ware, one of the TCC athletes, who provided me with a sworn
written statement. In his statement he advised that after the basketball game, he walked outside to grab the food
that the team had ordered when he was called out by his name by Terry Durham. Ware stated that Durham and two
females and the TCC basketball team started saying words. Ware advised that Dexter McKenzie then rushed out the
building and approached the TCC players. Ware stated that McKenzie and two females swung on players and that
the TCC team defended themselves. Ware said that he was held by another player on his team.

The third Individual | spoke with was Delmar Ali, another coach for TCC, who provided me with a sworn written
statement. Ali stated that he walked out the front entrance where he saw an argument between TCC and PSC
players. Ali advised that he got in between the group when Terry Durham then dropped his crutches and Dexter
McKenzie told one TCC player to "step out". Ali stated that that is when McKenzie and a female took a swing at TCC
player Floyd Davis and that his players reacted badly and began to fight. Ali advised that himself, Officer Gary and |,
were trying to break up the fight but other players from PSC began joining in and that it was getting out of control.
Ali said that Officer Gary had to mace the athletes and that Dexter, Terry and Adrian were taking cheap shots at the
TCC players who had been sprayed. Ali stated that a friend of Terry and Dexter had a firearm and no one said
anything but backed up.

The fourth individual | spoke with was Floyd Davis, a TCC athlete, who provided me with a verbal statement. Davis
stated that the argument began over the Domino's pizza. Davis advised that Terry Durham said to the TCC players

"I'm going to put you in the dirt". Davis stated that he tried to calm people down when the guy in the red jacket and
girl in jumpsuit swung at him, and that both teams started fighting.

The fifth statement | received was from Noah Croak, a TCC coach, who provided me with a written statement. Croak
advised that they were told a fight was happening and that there were a group of TCC and PSC players along with
PSC woman's team and fans in a brawl. Croak advised that Terry Durham and Dexter McKenzie were pursuing
TCC's team and that the TCC team reacted. Croak state that he heard McKenzie yell to an individual running up to
"get the guns" and that he saw Adrian Walker swing on DeAngelo Ware and Ware got Walker to the ground as staff
tried to break it up. Croak stated that a female officer then pepper sprayed the whole group. Croak advised that
Walker than ran away and Durham kept pursuing anyone in his path along with multiple females and fans. Croak
stated that TCC men's team then got on bus.

The sixth witness statement that | received was from Bijon Sidhu, a PSC athlete, who provided a written statement.
Sidhu stated that DeAngelo Ware jumped his teammate that was on crutches and that then all but two members of
the TCC team began beating three of his teammates. Sidhu stated that there were about 12 TCC players Vs 4 PSC
players. Sidhu advised that he then ran outside when he heard his teammates screaming and that some PSC
players were on the ground getting stomped by D.W, J.K, A.G and many others from the TCC team that he could not
identify due to being pepper sprayed. Sidhu said that D.W was the first person to start fighting and that he brought
his other teammates to help him. Sidhu stated that his teammates that were getting beat where just minding their
own business.

Officer Gary and I received statements from PSC Players from Coach Kapoor after the incident. The statements |
received were those of Josh Williams and Cheickna Sissoko.

The first statement | received was from Josh Williams, a PSC athlete, who provided a written statement. Williams
stated that he got a phone call saying his teammates were getting jumped, and that himself and three others ran
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outside to see Carie, Brett, Terry, and Dexter getting jumped. Williams stated that Adrian Walker was getting choked
out and that BT and DJ were getting stomped by 3 of 4 TCC players. Williams said that himself and Bijon tried to do
as much as they could to get the guy out of there safe but then they were spayed with pepper spray directly.

The second statement | received was from Cheickna Sissoko, a PSC athlete, who provided a written statement.
Sissoko stated that himself and Ben Turner walked outside of the gym to go to their cars when they saw a lot of
people fighting and that he recognized one of his teammates getting jumped by some TCC players. Sissoko advised
that he ran to help his teammate ad then saw another one of his teammates screaming because he had been pepper
sprayed. Sissoko said that he helped his friend Isaiah to his car and drove him back to the dorms. Sissoko advised
that the guys that jumped his teammates were TCC players but he could not see their faces. Sissoko stated that he
did not know which of his teammates was getting jumped but that people told him it was Terry Durham.

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 03/29/2021 01:33 PM

Reporting Officer Approving Supervisor

Call Number | Officer Name Permanent ID Number Approved Supervisor Name Permanent 1D Number
907 GARY, AMANDA PJC17PER000006 ™ STEELE, RICHARD PJC12PER000016
The video footages were reviewed. All three videos showed the same incident, from the same camera angles.

Rivera's video footage had the best video from this incident. Below are the following findings:

-Video was 5 mins and 17 seconds long.

-The beginning of the video was where person in the red hoodie, identified as McKenzie, was being physically
carried away from the middle of the road by a group. A second person was seen in a red hoodie as standing by,
outside of the group. McKenzie was wanting everyone to let him go but a female, identified as "Bri" McKenzie's
girlfriend was telling him to chill out. There was second small kids with her in the middle of everyone fighting.
-The camera points to the ground, and you hear a man's voice screaming |l live in Tallahassee as "Bri"” yells at him
to call down. The voice is believed to be McKenzie.

-The camera then refocuses and you see a large crowd in the trees fighting but cannot make out who the parties
are. You see a female in a light pink hoodie, identified as Jada Crenshaw, running from the crowd toward the
entrance of Building 3. Crenshaw is the niece to Evans which Evans was the mother of McKenzie.

-Another you see the individual in another red hoodie, unidentified, walking toward Building 3 staying away from
the altercation. This person was also with McKenzie's family.

-The fight is still going on and you see Crenshaw run back into the group.

The video points toward the ground, but you can hear Durham (who | personally can identify through his voice)
stating "yall walk up on" and "talkin bout go Terry"”. Durham also continues to be verbally loud yelling "yall gotta be
fucked up" and continues yelling through the entire video.

-In the background of the video, you see Crenshaw throw a punch at someone but could not see who the other
party was.

-Durham then enters back into the camera's view trying to start another fight with TCC player, Amir Gholizadeh, that
is being held back by his coach. Gholizadeh was actively trying to fight Druham back.

-Then Crenshaw walks up and punches Gholizadeh in the side of the head and runs away. Gholizadeh tries to go
after Crenshaw.

-Then several TCC players attempt to take the phone from Rivera. The players were identified as Josh Rubio, Floyd
Davis, and El Ellis. These TCC individuals attempted to fight with Rivera but others, including Officer Mendez,
removed them from the area.

-In the background, you can see another fight taking place in the parking lot.

-You are not able to make out who was involved, but could see one person stomping on someone's head at which
time | began pepper spraying individuals.

-Individuals then began to disperse. PSC players are seen in the background getting inside a truck and leaving as
PPD units pull up.

-Next part of the video is everyone dealing with the aftermath of OC spray injuries.

-TCC players identified as Gholizadeh and Kendell stood around to continue fighting but Rivera told them to go get
back on the bus in which they did.

-Next you see myself herding PSC people back inside the gym to separate the parties.

-The video ends as you hear Durham becoming irate wanting to go fight again.

The other video footages show the same footage in smaller clips.
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SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 03/29/2021 01:58 PM

Reporting Officer Approving Supervisor
Call Number [Officer Name Permanent ID Number Approved Supervisor Name Permanent ID Number
907 GARY, AMANDA PJC17PER000006 ™ STEELE, RICHARD PJC12PER000016

At this time, the information will be sent to the State Attorney's Office to determine if any criminal charges would be
pursued in this incident. The recommendation is to pursue charges of Florida Statute Affray 870.01(1) which stated
that fighting or affray occurs when two or more people engage in a fight in a public place which leads to the terror
of the people. The following suspects have been identified so far: McKenzie, Crenshaw, Walker, Druham, Davis,
Floyd, Rubio, Ware, and Gholizadeh.

It should also be taken into consideration that the individuals have now completed basketball season, and several
individuals live outside of the Pensacola area and several individuals will be returning home and/or attending
another school next semester when determining extradition if charges are pursued.

It should be taken into consideration that this incident resulted in the use of force (through less lethal alternatives -
Baton and O.C. Spray), the utilization of another law enforcement agency (Pensacola Police Department), and also
resulted in someone being transported to Sacred Heart Hospital for a head injury (Dexter McKenzie).

SUMMARY NARRATIVE: 03/29/2021 02:07 PM

Reporting Officer Approving Supervisor
Call Number [Officer Name Permanent 1D Number Approved Supervisor Name Permanent ID Number
907 GARY, AMANDA PJC17PER000006 | STEELE, RICHARD PJC12PER000016

On 4/1/2021, PSC athletes Adrian Walker, Dexter McKenzie, and Terry Durham completed a withdrawal of complaint
in regards to this incident.

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 03/30/2021 09:10 AM

Reporting Officer Approving Supervisor
Call Number [Officer Name Permanent 1D Number Approved Supervisor Name Permanent ID Number
908 [MENDEZ, STEPHANIE PSC18PER000008 ™ ]STEELE, RICHARD PJC12PER000016

On March 30th, 2021 at 0836 hours | received an email from Rob Chaney the Director of Athletics at TCC (who was
not present during his incident) containing ten new witness statements written two days prior to the incident along
with new statements from individuals who had already given statements at the scene. It will be noted that there are
multiple discrepancies in the second statements and will be uploaded to case management.

The new statements received were from: (waiting to receive ID cards from these individuals)

Imhotep George (player)- stated that Terry Durham is the individual who initiated the altercation followed by Dexter
McKenzie and 2 other females. He stated that the first punch was thrown by a female.

Joshua Rubio (player)- stated that he was going to get pizza and saw 2 of his teammates and one PSC player with 2
females, arguing over the pizza. stating that the "female cops" were doing nothing and just sprayed people and that
the PSC coaches ran away.

Leah Hutchins (manager)- Stated that herself and 2 TCC basketball players (DeAngelo Ware and Christian Hampton)
were going to get their pizza when Terry Durham said "you ain't getting shit,bitch". She stated that she tried to
restrain Ware to de-escalate the situation. She stated that Dexter and a Female swung first. She said that only the
TCC players got the majority of the spray.

Malique Calixte (manager)-Stated that he was walking out to get pizza and heard Terry Durham start yelling at them
along with a female. He stated that the female threw the first punch, so he ran inside to get coaches.

Mandela Baledrokadroka (player)-Stated that after he got changed he went to go get pizza and he saw Terry Durham
talking to his teammates and threatening DeAngelo Ware. He stated that the "policewoman" did nothing and that
and "older white man" had his teammate in a head lock and that he then got sprayed in the face.

Timothy Cox (coach)-Stated when he heard what was going on outside he rushed out to see 10-12 people in an
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altercation. He stated that more people were trying to break it up than in it. He stated that the individuals he saw in
the altercation were DeAngelo Ware, Breon Thompson, Josh Rubio and Floyd Davis from his team and from PSC it
was Dexter McKenzie and Adrian Walker. He saw multiple people then get pepper sprayed.

Etan Collins (player)- Stated he was going to get their pizza, when he saw one of his teammates and one PSC player
verbally arguing, then more PSC players came up. He stated they were yelling death threats. He said after the first
punch was thrown all the TCC players were trying to get on to bus. He stated he heard people yelling for guns.

Tyler Poindexter (player)- stated that he was walking out of the building when he heard Terry Durham and his
teammate DeAngelo Ware arguing. He stated he went back inside to get water bottles when he saw Dexter McKenzie
run out. He stated that the team had not other choice but to fight back. He stated he went to split up 4 guys and he
gets punched in the jaw by a female. he stated that then an Officer sprayed and he heard people stating they had
guns. (let it be noted that in Coach Noah Croaks second statement it says that Poindexter was not involved and on
the bus)

Breon Thompson (player)- he stated that the players were going outside to get their pizza, and he heard Terry
Durham yell. He said Dexter and his girlfriend rushed the players and fights broke out.

Neal Darsey, bus drive, Astro Travel & Tours - This statement was written by a third party, the actual statement was
captured on Officer Gary's body camera.

After reviewing all statements given, it should be noted that they all opened up with them getting pizza and ended
with officer spraying pepper spay. It should be also noted that all the quotes in each statement are identical whether
they were outside or inside building and description of the female who "threw the first punch”. It should be
documented that Each statement has similar accounts of actions and words what were said throughout the
fighting.

The updated statements:
Noah Croak

DeAngelo Ware

Zachary Settembre
Floyd Davis

After reading the new statements (that were sent to their school board) , the second statements given by Noah
Croak and Zachary Settembre had major discrepancies from their first sworn statements. In Noah Croaks statement
its says verbatim "Tyler Poindexter- on the bus, assisting guys with removing pepper spray, did not attempt any
malicious nature.”, but | received a statement from Poindexter stating that he was involved and not on the bus.
Another discrepancy is Noah Croak stating that DeAngelo Ware was "Deangelo Ware- walking to bus, hit in head by
Adrian Walker, held Adrian Walker in a choke hold until he was forced to let go by police.”, when in his statement he
states that he was involved with the fight with Terry Durham and Dexter McKenzie. It is also documented by the
Domino's delivery guy and with all other witness statements.

In Zachary Settembre's second statement contains false accusations that will be proven by video footage, as well
with sexist remarks, along with adding multiple details that were not in his first report.

SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 04/01/2021 08:48 AM
Reporting Officer

Approving Supervisor
Call Number |Officer Name Permanent D Number Approved Supervisor Name Permanent ID Number

907 GARY, AMANDA PJC17PER000006 STEELE, RICHARD PJC12PER000016

It should be clarified that my body camera was not utilized during the physical altercation being | did not have time
to turn on my camera. Upon exiting Building 3, Officer Mendez and | immediately began trying to break up the fight.
My body camera was initiated after the fight was over.
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SUPPLEMENTAL NARRATIVE: 04/01/2021 01:33 PM

Reporting Officer

Approving Supervisor

Call Number  [Officer Name

907 GARY, AMANDA

Permanent 1D Number

PJC17PER000006

Approved Supervisor Name

Perrnanent 1D Number
™ STEELE, RICHARD

PJC12PER000016

PPD's Video footage from Officer Barbosa was uploaded into Case Management.

SUMMARY NARRATIVE: 04/06/2021 01:52 PM

Reporting Officer

Approving Supervisor

Call Number | Officer Name
907 GARY, AMANDA

Permanent ID Number

PJC17PER000006

Permanent ID Number

PJC12PER000016

Approved Supervisor Name
M lSTEELE, RICHARD

and no charges are being pursued.

At this time, PSC administration outside the PSC Police Department wished to handle this incident
through PSC's Student Conduct and not with law enforcement action. This case is now inactivate with our agency

ASSISTING OFFICERS

Rank Officer Name ID Number
| p PATROL Of | MENDEZ, STEPHANIE

A
| PENSACOLA STATE COLLEGE POLICE DEPARTMENT

REPORTING OFFICER / SUPERVISOR APPROVAL

Reporting Officer

Approving Supervisor

Call Number Name 1D Number Rank Name
907 GARY, AMANDA
Signature Signature
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